
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 
 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, June 3, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 

 
b. Minutes for Approval:  May 6, 2014, Town Council Meeting 

 
c. Approval of Connection of New Potable Water Service with Palm Beach County, Norma 

Davis – 14685 40th Street N., Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
  
 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Representative Mark S. Pafford, Florida House of Representative, District 86, to 
provide Legislative Update. 
 

b. Phyllis Maniglia, representing the Loxahatchee Groves Land Owners Association, 
is requesting consideration of a monetary donation from the Town, as a sponsor 
for her attendance to the 2014 Florida Neighborhoods Conference in Orlando, 
July 11th and 12th, 2014.  
 

c. Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, to present the Unified Land 
Development Code Review Committee Summary Report. 
 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
Elise Ryan, Chair for the FAAC (Financial Advisory and Audit Committee), to provide Financial 
Report ending April 2014. 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-05 (Opposition to Minto West Development 
 Amendments):   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, OPPOSING THE AMENDMENTS TO THE PALM BEACH 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PROPOSED FOR THE MINTO WEST 
DEVELOPMENT ON PROPERTY ABUTTING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES AND FORMERLY REFERRED TO AS CALLERY JUDGE GROVES; 
URGING THE PALM BEACH COUNTY COMMISSION TO DENY THE PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING FOR COPIES OF THIS RESOLUTION TO BE 
DISTRIBUTED TO AFFECTED ENTITIES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 2nd / FINAL READING / PUBLIC HEARING 
(Livestock Waste – Property Owners).  (rev 05/15/2014) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN; AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE BY 
AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 

2 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ENTITLED “PUBLIC NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
PROVIDING THAT THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE 
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION 
AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE DELIVERY AND 
USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE; PROVIDING FOR REPORTING AND NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

b. ORDINANCE NO 2014-05: 2ND / FINAL READING / PUBLIC HEARING (Guns, 
Firearms, Gun Ranges). 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TO ELIMINATE REGULATIONS RELATING TO GUNS, FIREARMS AND 
GUN RANGES TO ADDRESS STATE PREEMPTIONS OF THE REGULATION OF 
THESE SUBJECTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO COMPLY WITH 
THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
9.  OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission Office of the General Counsel, re 

Local Ordinances and the Regulations of Captive Wildlife. (Councilman Goltzené) 
 

b. Code Enforcement PowerPoint Presentation (Town Manager Kutney – Receive and File)   
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 

3 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for July 1, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Attorney Invoice 

5 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes 

May 6, 2014 

12 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 6, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 

 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  Present were Mayor David Browning, 
Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang and Jim Rockett.  Also present 
were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Town Planning Technician 
Braeden Garrett, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel requested to remove 2.a.1, Amendment No. 2 of the Professional Service 
Agreement Extension of Underwood Management Services Group, LLC. (UMSG) from the 
Consent Agenda, and the Agenda, in order to allow Council time to review with the Underwood 
Management Services Group  issues of concern within the contract. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised Vice-Mayor Jarriel to pull the item from the Consent Agenda, 
move it to a Regular Agenda item following the Consent Agenda, then address the Agreement at 
that time. 

13 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Councilman Goltzené requested to remove 2.a.2 Approval of piggybacking contract with North 
Florida Emulsions for Micro Surfacing (not OGEM), from the Consent Agenda, to be placed as a 
Regular Agenda item. 
 
Councilman Rockett corrected the date for the minutes to be approved as April 15, 2014 not 
April 10, 2014. 
 
Motion:   Councilman Goltzené moved to approve the Agenda as amended.  Councilman 
Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 
a. Authorization for execution of contracts by Mayor Browning: 

 
1) Approval of Amendment No. 2 - Professional Service Agreement.   

Extension of Underwood Management Services Group, LLC (UMSG), of 
initial term, for an additional one (1) year renewal term.  (Pulled from Consent 
Agenda)  

 
2) Approval of piggybacking contract with North Florida Emulsions for Micro 

Surfacing (not OGEM).  (Pulled from Consent Agenda) 
 

3) Approval of renewal agreement with Bergeron Emergency Services, Inc. 
Disaster Recovery Services (RFQ No 2011-03). 

 
4) Approval of renewal agreement with C & C Loader Services, Inc. Disaster 

Recovery Services (RFQ No. 2011-03). 
 

5) Approval of renewal agreement with TAG Grinding Services, Inc. Disaster 
Recovery Services (RFQ No. 2011-03). 

 
6) Approval of renewal agreement with O’Brien’s Response Management, LLC 

Disaster Debris Monitoring Services (RFQ No. 2011-04). 
 

b. Invoice from Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A.  
 
Note:  Minutes for Approval:  (The minutes will come as an addendum prior to the 
meeting.) 

• April 1, 2014  
• April 10, 2014 (corrected to read April 15, 2014) 

 
 
 

14 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Approval of Amendment No. 2 - Professional Service Agreement,   
extension of Underwood Management Services Group, LLC (UMSG), of 
initial term, for an additional one (1) year renewal term.  (Pulled from Consent 
Agenda)  

 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to pull Underwood Management Services 
Group Agreement from the Agenda, in order to allow the management company to sit with 
each Council member to discuss items of concern in the contract. He does not want to vote 
on this matter tonight as there are five (5) months before the contract expires.  Councilman 
Liang seconded the motion.   
 
Mayor Browning was under the assumption that Council had voted to renew to contract for one 
year. 
 
Councilman Goltzené stated that his original motion on April 15, 2014, was to renew the 
contract for one year. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo clarified that the original motion renewed the contract for one (1) year; 
Council would sit down with Underwood to discuss any matters of concerns at other times.  

 
Councilman Rockett suggested that Vice-Mayor Jarriel modify his motion, including 
Councilman Liang’s second, to move this item to the first Town Council Meeting in June, (June 
3, 2014).  
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel agreed to modify his motion to pull the contract from the agenda and 
postpone re-approval of the Underwood Management Services Group Contract until first 
meeting in June.  Councilman Liang agreed to modify his second. 

 
Bill Underwood, Underwood Management Services Group, expressed his concerns that by 
postponing the approval of the contract, the current employees may not have enough time to look 
for other jobs.  Mr. Underwood also stated the Management Company would not be participating 
in future negotiations. 

 
Mayor Browning stated he felt the deal had already been made and Council had agreed to renew 
the Underwood Contract for one year.  He suggested Council meet with the management 
company to discuss matters of concern within the contract.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that since Vice-Mayor Jarriel was on the prevailing side of the vote 
to renew the contract then it was his choice to bring the matter back to Council. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel reported the Management Contract allows for a sixty (60) to ninety (90) day 
notification of renewal. 
 
Bill Underwood confirmed that, as owner of the company, he did not mind sitting down with 
each Council Member to review particular items in the contract, as there is a lot of garbage.  
However, without a commitment from Council to move forward, there is no reason for him to sit 

15 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



down and discuss contract items of concern.  He is willing to help with the next Management 
Company, and the changes needed in the contract, but he will not be held hostage for another 
month for a vote that has already occurred. 
 
Upon vote to pull Underwood Management Services Group from the agenda, the motion 
failed 2/3 with Councilman Goltzené, Councilman Liang, and Mayor Browning casting 
dissenting votes. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated further action is needed. 

 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made motion to adhere to his original motion to renew for 
one (1) year; authorize the Mayor to execute the contract, and keep on agenda.  
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0.  

 
Approval of piggybacking contract with North Florida Emulsions for Micro Surfacing 
(not OGEM).  (Pulled from Consent Agenda) 
  

Councilman Goltzené stated he objects to the piggybacking method for construction projects.  
Council can proceed. 

 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to not approve the piggybacking contract 
with North Florida Emulsions.  The motion dies for lack of a second. 

 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to approve the piggybacking contract with 
North Florida Emulsions and authorize the Mayor to execute the contract.  Councilman 
Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Councilman Goltzené 
casting the dissenting vote. 

 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
David Self, 161st Terrace North, explained some of the problems that were arising from the use 
of cut throughs on A Road to 161st Terrace North; along with noise on 161st Terrace North and 
the Rayside Property.  He thanked Staff for their help. 
 
Neil Enos, 3989 161st Terrace North, also discussed the cut throughs as illegal road access. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel read a letter from David Self into the record. 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Terry Morton, Nowlen, Holt and Miner P.A., to provide a presentation on the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) Fiscal Year 
Ending September 2013. 

 

16 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Bill Underwood, Underwood Management Services Group, introduced Mr. Morton. 
 
Terry Morton, Nowlen Holt and Miner, P.A. provided a letter of auditing standards and stated 
that Loxahatchee Groves had achieved the Financial Award for Fiscal Year Ending September 
2013.  Mr. Morton reviewed basic point of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report CAFR), 
and reported the Town had a clean Audit. 
 
Council discussed with Mr. Morton, Mr. Underwood and Town Manager Kutney various 
components of the Audit. 
 

 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. Elise Ryan, Financial Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) Board Member, to provide 
Financial Report Ending April 2014, for approval. 
 

Virginia Standish, FAAC Board Member, provided the Financial Report Ending April 2014.  She 
also stated new appointments were held on Monday, April 28, 2014, and Elise Ryan was selected 
as the new Chair and Cheryl Miller as the new Vice-Chair of the FAAC.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept the Financial Report Ending April 
2014, as presented.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 
5/0.  
 
 
RESOLUTIONS - NONE 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  

  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04:  1ST READING/PUBLIC HEARING (Livestock 
Waste – Property Owners) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN; AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE BY 
AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 
ENTITLED “PUBLIC NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
PROVIDING THAT THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE 
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION 
AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE DELIVERY AND 
USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE; PROVIDING FOR REPORTING AND NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 

17 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Ordinance No. 2014-04, and noted the Ordinance in the 
packet included the comments made by the Planning and Zoning Board.    
 
Councilman Goltzené felt the underlying wordage in Ordinance No. 2014-04 was excessive and 
restrictive for the residents to adhere to. He agreed, hauling into the Town is illegal, but not to 
address each person’s property, as it is an invasion on their agriculture status.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 2014-04 on First 
Reading, as amended.   Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion 
passed 3/2 with Councilman Goltzené and Mayor Browning casting dissenting votes. The 
Second Reading will be during the June 17, 2014, Town Council Meeting.  
 
 

  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

a. IGC- Items from Steve Yohe, Loxahatchee Groves Water Control district (LGWCD) 
Administrator from the IGC (Intergovernmental Coordination Meeting will be brought to 
Council during the May 20 2014 Town Council Meeting. 
 

b. Town Manage Kutney reported the Palm Beach County League of Cities Annual GALA 
will be held on May 21, 2014.  He will RSVP if Council would like to attend.  It was the 
consensus of Council to send Town Manage Kutney as the Town’s representative. 
 

c. The Tax Map letter was sent to Palm Beach County on April 29, 20014.  The deadline 
was April 30, 2014. 
 

d. Roundabouts were discussed during the Roadway, Equestrian Trails, and Greenway 
Committee (RETGAC).  This topic should be looked at again during a Joint Workshop 
between Planning and Zoning and RETGAC on May 15, 2014, so that it can be brought 
back to Council during the May 20, 2014  Town Council Meeting. 
 

e. Mr. Kutney reported the new officers for the Roadway, Equestrian Trails, and Greenway 
Committee; Chair Keith Harris, Vice-Chair Jo Siciliano; and for the Financial Advisory 
and Audit Committee; Chair Elise Ryan, Vice-Chair Cheryl Miller. 

 
Council questioned why the Planning and Zoning Board tabled Ordinance No 2014-05 (guns, 
firearms, and gun ranges).  
 

18 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Manager Kutney explained the concerns of the Planning and Zoning Board relative to the 
Florida Statutes. 
 
Council discussed the references to guns, firearms and gun ranges within the ordinance, and the 
need to make decisions. 
 
It was the consensus of Council to send Ordinance No. 2014-05 back to the Planning and 
Zoning Board for a second review; then bring the Ordinance to Council for first reading 
during the Town Council Meeting on June 3, 2014, and for second reading on June 17, 
2014. 
 
Town Manager Kutney and Town Attorney Cirullo were in agreement, and those dates would 
comply with the required legal advertisement dates. 
 

 
9.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Reconsideration of items missing from motion concerning speed humps spacing of one-
thousand feet (1,000) feet, which was approved 5/0 during the April 15th Town Council 
Meeting.   The motion should include one-hundred (100 feet) from the end of a street to 
facilitate safe turns - no further than three-hundred (300) feet.  Spacing of speed humps 
should be within a range of five hundred (500) to one thousand (1,000) feet to allow for 
more speed humps on higher traffic roads, i.e. B Road.  (Councilman Rockett) 

Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to revise the original motion concerning 
speed humps made during the May 6, 2014 Town Council Meeting so the information is 
more inclusive. Councilman Liang seconded the motion. 
 
Council discussed the various distances between speed humps, cost, range, and the need for 
speed humps. 
 
Councilman Rockett then refined his motion to install speed humps no shorter than one-
hundred (100) feet, and no further than three-hundred (300) feet from the end of the road; 
and to place the distance between speed humps from five-hundred (500) feet up to one-
thousand (1,000) feet depending on the traffic volume of the road.  Councilman Liang 
maintained his second.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Councilman Goltzene 
casting a dissenting vote. 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement between the Town of Loxahatchee Groves and the 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) for a transfer of funds in the 
amount of $40,000 for Equestrian Trails Improvements. 

19 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Manager Kutney provided a brief background on the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control 
District (LGWCD) Interlocal Agreement. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the agreement between the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves and the LGWCD for transfer of funds in the amount of $40,000 for 
Equestrian Trails Improvements and to authorize the Mayor to sign.  Councilman Rockett 
seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 5/0. 
 

b. Neil Enos discussing issues regarding cut through roads – 161st to 162nd and 161st to 160th 
Road. ( Ron Jarriel)  (Mr. Enos made his presentation during the beginning of the 
meeting.) 

Council discussed with Town Manager Kutney the problems occurring around the cut through 
roads of 161st to 162nd and 161st to 160th.  The Town needs to work with Staff, and the Palm 
Beach County Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) to notify property owners that their property is being 
trespassed upon and subject to abuse, vandalism, illegal dumping, and partying.  At this time the 
PBSC cannot get involved, and the Town could be liable if something happens and nothing has 
been done to remedy the concerns.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised Council to step aside and allow Town Manager Kutney to handle 
the situation. 
 
Council discussed the alternatives. 
  
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

No further comments from the Public. 
 

b. Town Attorney   
 

No further comments from the Town Attorney. 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Rockett thanked everyone for coming. 
 

Councilman Liang thanked everyone for a short meeting and for coming. 
  

20 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Goltzene thanked everyone for being at the meeting. 
 

Mayor Browning has an applicant for the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Committee 
(RETGAC).  He will call her this week to see if she is still interested, and if so he will make his 
appointment during the next Town Council Meeting.  
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the 
meeting at 8:32 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________   ______________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk    David Browning, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

21 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.c. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Water Connection  

Norma Davis 

22 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM: Braeden Garrett, Town Planning Technician   
 
THROUGH: Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:            May 28, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:      Norma Davis – 14685 40th Street N., Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470, 

Connection of New Potable Water Service with Palm Beach County 
   
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
In accordance with the Town of Loxahatchee Groves’ Comprehensive Plan, Infrastructure 
Element 3-3, and Chapters 166 and 180, Florida Statutes, the Town is authorized to provide 
utility service within the Town’s municipality limits. In order to avoid the duplication of 
pipelines and other facilities, the Town has agreed to allow the County to provide potable water, 
wastewater, and reclaimed water services within the Town’s municipal limits.  Property owners 
along Southern Boulevard, Okeechobee Boulevard and 40th Street, who are adjacent to these 
water mains, may request connection with the permission of the Town Council. 
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
Norma Davis is requesting approval for water connection service at 4685 40th Street N. 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 
 

• N/A 
 
IV. ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Application 
 

V. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Motion by Town Council to approve the application. 
 

23 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 4.b. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Phyllis Maniglia 

 
 

24 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



25 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



26 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



27 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



28 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 4.c. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Jim Fleischmann 

 
 

29 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Owner
Typewritten Text

Owner
Typewritten Text

Owner
Typewritten Text

Owner
Typewritten Text

Owner
Typewritten Text

Owner
Typewritten Text
Item 4.c. Presentation has been included as a separate Attachment to the Town Council 06/03/2014 Agenda Packet and is included in its entirety as2014-06-03 Agenda Packet Attachment 4.c.

Owner
Typewritten Text

Owner
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 5. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Financials Ending April 2014 

 
 

267 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



268 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



269 of 369      06/03/2014 A
genda P

acket 
                   



270 of 369      06/03/2014 A
genda P

acket 
                   



271 of 369      06/03/2014 A
genda P

acket 
                   



272 of 369      06/03/2014 A
genda P

acket 
                   



273 of 369      06/03/2014 A
genda P

acket 
                   



274 of 369      06/03/2014 A
genda P

acket 
                   



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6. 

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No. 2014-05 

 
 

275 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-05 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, OPPOSING THE 
AMENDMENTS TO THE PALM BEACH COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PROPOSED FOR THE MINTO WEST 
DEVELOPMENT ON PROPERTY ABUTTING THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES AND FORMERLY REFERRED TO AS 
CALLERY JUDGE GROVES; URGING THE PALM BEACH 
COUNTY COMMISSION TO DENY THE PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING FOR COPIES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO AFFECTED ENTITIES; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves borders on a 3,791 acre parcel, formerly 

owned by Callery Judge Groves, whereon in 2008 the Palm Beach County Commission approved 

development that would permit 2996 dwelling units at a density of 0.80 units per acre and 235,000 

square feet of non-residential development on property designated as an “Agricultural Enclave” in 

the Palm Beach County Comprehensive Plan (the “Property”); and,  

WHEREAS, in 2013, the Property was conveyed to a new owner, Minto SPW, LLC 

(“Minto”); and,  

WHEREAS. Minto has filed an application with Palm Beach County to amend the Palm 

Beach County Comprehensive Plan to permit the development of 6500 residential units, 1.4 million 

square feet of non-residential uses, as well as a college campus, hotel and a baseball stadium; and,  

WHEREAS, the pending application more than doubles the currently approved residential 

density on the Property, and would increase the non-residential uses on the Property more than six 

times that of the currently approved plan; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town’s comprehensive plan provides that the residential density in the 

Town is 1 unit per 5 acres; and,  

276 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WHEREAS, if the proposed amendments are approved, the residential density on the 

Property will be approximately twenty (20) times that of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves; and,   

WHEREAS, as a designated Agricultural Enclave, the development has a statutory 

preemption that it is not urban sprawl if its land uses and densities include those that surround the 

property; and,  

WHEREAS, considering the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, the uses and intensities in the 

Indian Trails improvements District, and in the area generally known as the “Western 

Communities,” the proposed amendment would be urban sprawl; and,  

WHEREAS, the approval of the proposed amendment would result in an urban enclave, 

with uses and intensities of use disproportionate to those that surround the Property; and,  

WHEREAS, Okeechobee Boulevard vital to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, as it is 

located generally in the middle of the Town; and,  

WHEREAS, if the proposed amendments are adopted by the County Commission, 

Okeechobee Boulevard is likely to become a thoroughfare, similar to Southern Boulevard, which 

would physically divide the Town, contrary to the desires of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, and 

its residents; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves is seeking to protect and maintain the rural 

lifestyles for which people live in the Town and which is vital to the Town’s vision and future; and,  

WHEREAS, if the proposed amendments are adopted by the County Commission, it would 

result in a massive development on the Town’s border, and Okeechobee Boulevard being converted 

into a thoroughfare for traffic from new developments to the west and north of the Town, which 

would permanently alter the rural lifestyles of the Town and the Western Communities; and, 

WHEREAS, when the County Commission approved the rezoning for the Highland Dunes 

development in 2013, many Commissioners publicly recognized the value to Palm Beach County 

277 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



of diverse lifestyles and intensities in Palm Beach County, including the rural lifestyle of the 

Western Communities, and stated that careful consideration must be given when applications for 

development in the area are considered; and,  

WHEREAS, Minto is not entitled to any additional development rights, as the current 

approved densities and uses were reviewed by the County in 2008 and approved consistent with the 

Property’s designation as an Agricultural Enclave at that time, the uses and intensities of use in the 

Western Communities have not changed since those 2008 approvals, and Minto purchased the 

Property knowing full well the extent and scope of the permitted development on the Property; and,  

WHEREAS, denying the proposed applications would be in the best interest of the 

residents of the Town and the Western Communities, as well as throughout the County by 

preserving the diversity of lifestyles that includes the rural and agricultural uses that are 

predominant within the Town of Loxahatchee Groves.   

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  
 

Section 1.  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are confirmed and ratified as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution.  

Section 2.  The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby opposes the 

pending applications filed by Minto to increase the currently approved uses and intensities of uses 

for the Property. 

Section 3. The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves urges the Palm 

County Commission to deny Minto’s applications to amend the Palm Beach County 

Comprehensive Plan, and deny all efforts to increase the currently approved densities and uses for 

the Property. 

Section 4. The Town Clerk is directed to provide a copy of this Resolution to each 

member of the Palm Beach County Commission, the County Administrator, the Indian Trials 

278 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Improvement District, the Palm Beach County League of Cities, and other entities as may be 

determined by the Town Council or Town Management from time to time to be affected by the 

future development of the Property.  

Section 5.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effective immediately upon its 

adoption.  

ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, this 3rd  day of June, 2014.  

 
ATTEST:      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
        FLORIDA 
_______________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk             __________________________________ 
        Mayor David Browning  
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:        __________________________________ 
        Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   

  
______________________________            __________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
        __________________________________ 
        Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
        __________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 

279 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2014-04 (Livestock Waste Property Owners) 

(2nd/Final Reading) 

 

 

 

 
 

280 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE 
USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN; 
AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE BY AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL 
REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 ENTITLED “PUBLIC 
NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR 
DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING THAT THE USE OF LIVESTOCK 
WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY 
THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION AND 
PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE 
DELIVERY AND USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE; PROVIDING 
FOR REPORTING AND NOTICE REQUIREMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

adopted Ordinance 2010-003, to provide requirements for permits by landowners and transporters 

of manure and horse bedding (livestock waste) in the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-03, which 

amended and restated Ordinance 2010-03, to provide for properties eligible to receive manure and 

horse bedding materials (livestock waste), amend permit requirements and provide regulations on 

how such materials are used on eligible properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to the current permitting process and continued abuses by commercial haulers, and property 

owners, for dumping manure and horse droppings (livestock waste) on properties within the Town; 

and,  

281 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with water quality within the 

drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents with scientific and academic 

backgrounds that raised phosphorous levels are possible from continued abuse of livestock waste 

dumping by commercial haulers, and property owners, within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that increased equestrian activities in neighboring 

municipalities during certain periods of time each year causes commercial haulers of livestock 

waste originating on facilities in those areas to seek out places in close proximity to those 

communities to dump their loads and avoid expenses and perhaps industry regulations associated 

with taking such loads to facilities designed to accept such; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that when used properly and in limited quantities, 

livestock waste can provide agricultural benefits, and thus a total ban on the delivery of livestock 

waste is not in the best interest of the community; and,  

 WHEREAS, on the other hand, improper disposal and use of Livestock Waste is a public 

nuisance, causing pollution concerns, attracting flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council seeks to balance permitting the limited and beneficial use 

of livestock waste with avoiding nuisances created by abuses associated with the dumping of such 

materials within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town believes that given the limited beneficial use of livestock waste, it is 

fair and reasonable to require property owners of property on which livestock waste is to be 

deposited for use for agricultural purposes to obtain a permit from the Town so that public 

nuisances can be avoided and the Town can effectively enforce regulations and laws intended to 

prevent illegal dumping of livestock waste and prevent pollution.      

282 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.  Ordinance 2012-03 is superceded as set forth herein.   

 Section 2. The Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) is amended to 

amend Part III, entitled “Supplemental Regulations,” Article 50, entitled “Public Nuisance,” to 

create a new Section 50-035, to be entitled “Use of Livestock Waste,” to read as follows: 

PART III – SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE 50 – PUBLIC NUISANCES 

Section 50-035. – Use of Livestock Waste. 

(A) Definitions.  All terms shall have the meanings set forth in Section 10-015 of the Unified 

Land Development Code, except as defined herein.  The following definitions shall apply to 

this Section: 

1. Approved disposal site: A real property for which a Town, county or state registration or 
permit has been issued for the disposal and/or processing of livestock waste, as amended 
from time to time, and/or a plot of land that is conducting bona fide agricultural activities 
in accordance with F.S. § 193.461. 

2. Bona fide agricultural purposes:  means farming, pasture, grove, or forestry operations, 
including horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, dairy, livestock, poultry, bee and 
aquaculture, consistent with Section 823.14, Florida Statutes (Right to Farm) and Section 
570.02, Florida Statutes (Agriculture).                   

3. Commercial livestock waste hauler: Person(s), firm(s), corporation(s), or other legal 
entit(ies) permitted by the Town to provide livestock waste removal services for a fee 
within the Town in accordance with terms and conditions established by this ordinance. 

4. Composting: The process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is 
carried out under controlled aerobic conditions, and which stabilizes the organic fraction 
into a material which can easily and safely be stored, handled, and used in an 
environmentally acceptable manner within a period of 90 days.  

5. Hauler:  when used herein, collectively Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler and 
Livestock Waste Self-Haulers. 

283 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6. Livestock: Grazing animals, such as cattle, horses, sheep, goats, other ruminants, swine, 
ostriches, emus and rheas, which are used for private use or commercial purposes, or as 
defined by F.S. § 585.01, as may be amended from time to time.  

7. Livestock facility:  Property under single ownership or control where livestock is raised 
and or boarded.  

8. Livestock waste: Wastes composed of excreta of animals and residual materials that have 
been used for bedding, sanitary, or feeding purposes for such animals. For purposes of 
this article, livestock waste that has been properly composted shall not be considered 
livestock waste.  

(a) Livestock waste self-hauler: Property owner or authorized representative providing 
Livestock waste removal services from their own property within the Town, or delivering 
Livestock waste to their own property within the Town from a location within the Town, 
for personal use only by the owner or tenant of the receiving property, using a vehicle 
with a capacity no greater than ten (10) cubic yards.  

9. Livestock waste storage area: An area constructed of impermeable material such as 
concrete or asphalt; with an impermeable cover; or a mechanical storage container that 
can be sealed, lifted, and transported. 

10. Load: approximately twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) cubic yards of Livestock Waste.    
11. Public Nuisance:  the unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of 

property, which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to 
the general public. 
 

(B) The deposit, dumping, and/or use of Livestock Waste, unless done in strict compliance 

with this Section is declared to be a public nuisance and is prohibited. 

(C) A property owner must obtain a permit from the Town prior to accepting any Livestock 

Waste on the property.  A property owner may have only one permit at a time.   An 

annual permit shall be valid from October 1 to September 30, and shall expire each 

September 30 regardless of the date it is issued.  Property owners are responsible for the 

timely renewal of the annual permits.     

(D) The requirements for the permit required by subsection (C) are as follows: 

1. With the exception of a Town Manager-approved permit for residential property 

hereinafter provided, the property on which the Livestock waste is to be deposited 

must be designated as agricultural by the Palm Beach County Tax Collector for 

property tax purposes; provided that when a property owner applies for the first 

284 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



time to the Town for a permit, the property owner may obtain its initial permit 

notwithstanding not having the agricultural use tax designation when the property 

owner has filed an application with the Palm Beach Tax Collector for an 

agricultural use property tax designation and certifies to the Town Manager that 

the property owner is making a good faith effort to obtain the agricultural use tax 

designation as soon as possible.  This exception shall apply only for the initial 

permit.  No subsequent permits may be issued until the property obtains the 

agricultural use tax designation.  Property owners of property designated as 

residential by the Palm Beach County Tax Collector may obtain a permit from the 

Town Manager when the property owner of the residential property demonstrates 

to the Town Manager that the Livestock Waste is solely for bona fide agricultural 

purpose on-site.  The Town Manager shall advise the Town Council of all permits 

approved for residential properties.     

2. The permit will be in the name of the record owner of the property.  The property 

owner must be the applicant for the permit. 

3. The property owner shall certify at the time of application that the Livestock 

Waste originates from within the Town or is shown by the filing of an affidavit by 

the property owner that it originated from outside the State of Florida. 

4. The property owner must certify at the time of application tthat the Livestock 

Waste is being used by the property owner for bona fide agricultural purposes in 

appropriately limited quantities pursuant to Best Management Practices (BMP) or 

guidelines published by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for 

285 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



the application of Livestock Waste (published guideline).  The property owner 

shall provide the Town with a copy of the applicable BMP or published guideline.   

5. The property owner must advise the Town at the time of application tof the total 

quantity of Livestock Waste to be delivered to the property and its intended use.    

6. The property owner must identify whether he or she will be a Livestock Waste 

Self-Hauler, will use a Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, or both.  In the event 

a property owner intends to use a Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, the 

property owner must identify the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, and the 

Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler must have a permit from the Town and be in 

compliance with the Town’s ordinances at all times during the effectiveness of the 

owner’s permit.  A permit issued to a property owner pursuant this Section limits 

the property owner to using only one (1) Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler.  

The property owner must advise the Town in writing of a change in the 

Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler prior to receiving any Livestock Waste from 

the new Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler.    

7. The acceptance of a permit by the property owner shall provide consent for a 

Town representative to inspect the property solely for purposes of ensuring 

compliance with the terms of the permit.   

8. There shall be no charge for a Property Owner Permit.  

9. The Town may request copies of permits and licenses for the designated 

Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, as well as drawings or layouts of the 

property to verify that the Livestock Waste shall be deposited and used in 

compliance with this Section 50-035. 

286 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(E) The deposit of Livestock Waste is permitted only on Approved disposal sites within the 

Town.   

(F) Only Livestock Waste that originates from within the Town or is shown by the filing of 

an affidavit by the property owner that it originated from outside the State of Florida may 

be deposited on property within the Town. 

(G) Delivery of Livestock Waste by Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers shall be permitted 

only between the hours of 9:00 am through 4:00 pm, Monday through Friday, except 

holidays as listed on the Town website.  Delivery of Livestock Waste by Commercial 

Livestock Waste Haulers is prohibited at all other times.  Delivery must also be avoided 

during storm events, or when the ground is saturated.    

(H) The Property Owner may accept a maximum of ten (10) loads pursuant to the Permit, 

with a maximum of four (4) loads in a calendar month.   

(I) The Property Owner shall ensure that its Hauler does not dump Livestock Waste: 

a. within fifty (50) feet of the property line, or such other distance in this subsection 

(I), whichever is greater; 

b. within two hundred (200) feet of any well or other private potable water source, 

provided that the distance shall be three hundred (300) feet from the private 

potable water source if the private potable water source is located down slope 

from the Livestock Waste dumping site.  These distances apply whether the water 

source is on the property or beyond the property; 

c. within five hundred (500) feet from a potable community well or water source.  

This distance applies whether the surface water is on the property or beyond the 

property; 

287 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



d. Within fifty (50) feet from surface waters where the site is level and has 

vegetative cover, or one hundred (100) feet if the soil surface slopes towards the 

water source or is void of vegetative cover.  These distances apply whether the 

water source is on the property or beyond the property.     

(J) The Property Owner shall spread the Livestock Waste in accordance with BMP or 

published guidelines within seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of the materials.  Upon 

receiving notice from the Town of flies, odors or other adverse effects, affecting 

neighbors, the Livestock Waste shall be immediately spread by the Property Owner.  

Property Owners are required to use appropriate equipment to properly spread Livestock 

Waste.   

(K) Livestock Waste shall not be spread or otherwise applied: 

a. within fifty (50) feet of the property lines or such other distance in this subsection 

(K), whichever is greater; 

b. within two hundred (200) feet of any well or other private potable water source, 

provided that the distance shall be three hundred (300) feet from the private 

potable water source if the private potable water source is located down slope 

from the Livestock Waste dumping site.  These distances apply whether the water 

source is on the property or beyond the property; 

c. within five hundred (500) feet from a potable community well or water source.  

This distance applies whether the surface water is on the property or beyond the 

property; 

d. Within fifty (50) feet from surface waters where the site is level and has 

vegetative cover, or one hundred (100) feet if the soil surface slopes towards the 

288 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



water source or is void of vegetative cover.  These distances apply whether the 

water source is on the property or beyond the property.     

(L) Crops should be planted as soon as possible after spreading, but in no case later than 

ninety (90) days after spreading.  A failure to timely plant crops shall result in a 

revocation of the permit and the property owner shall not be eligible for a new permit for 

a period of one (1) year from the date of revocation.   

(M) The use of Livestock Waste as fill on property is strictly prohibited.  

(N) The property owner shall post a sign at the entrance on the property at the location where 

deliveries are received with a contact telephone number for neighbors to be able to 

contact the property owner about concerns with the delivery and/or use of Livestock 

Waste on the property.    

(O) Delivery Records shall be provided by property owners to the Town Manager each 

month, no later than the fifth (5th) business day of the month following the month for 

which the report is filed.  The Delivery records shall identify the waste source, quantity in 

cubic yards, and the bona fide agricultural use of the Livestock waste.  Failure to provide 

monthly delivery records shall result in the revocation of the permit. The Town reserves 

the right to audit the delivery records and request records from the Commercial Livestock 

Waste Hauler that delivered the Livestock Waste to the property.  The failure to 

cooperate with such audit shall result in the revocation of a permit. 

(P) The Town Council reserves the right to amend this Ordinance at any time, and any such 

amendments will apply to both future permits and active permits unless specifically 

exempted by the Town Council.    

289 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(Q) Violations of this ordinance shall result in a revocation of a permit by the Town Manager.  

Violations of this ordinance by a permit holder’s designated Commercial Livestock 

Waste Hauler shall be a violation by the permit holder.   Should a person violate this 

ordinance on more than one (1) occasion during a calendar year, that person shall not be 

granted a permit from the Town for a period of one (1) calendar year from the date of the 

last violation.   

(R) A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council to be a public nuisance. 

(S) The Town Council specifically finds that a violation of this ordinance presents a public 

nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, and law 

enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state and local laws within the 

Town shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes. Upon the issuance of a 

violation notice under Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or this ordinance, any permits 

issued by the Town to the property owner shall be suspended and the property owner 

shall cease accepting Livestock Waste until such time as a hearing is conducted or the 

fines paid.    

(T) In addition to enforcement pursuant to Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, this ordinance 

shall be enforced as follows: 

(1) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.  In addition to 

penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, the fines 

for violations of this ordinance shall be: 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$350 $400 $450 $500 

 

290 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(2) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in 

which case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty 

(60) days, or both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover 

its costs of prosecution, including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs 

for law enforcement and Town employees. 

(3) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a 

law enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, 

Florida Statutes, or of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the 

maximum permitted by law.  The Town shall recover its costs of prosecution, 

including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law enforcement and 

Town employees. 

(4) Each day a violation remains, and each delivery by a Commercial Livestock 

Waste Hauler for which there is no permit, constitutes a separate violation of this 

ordinance.   

(U) Nothing in this ordinance is to be construed to permit a Solid Waste Management Facility 

in conflict with Town state and county regulations. 

 Section 3.  Effect on Ordinance 2012-03.  The provisions herein as to regulations 

for Property Owners for delivery and use of Livestock Waste, referred to in Ordinance 2012-03 

as “manure and horse bedding,” supersede and replace regulations as to delivery and use of 

Livestock Waste on properties within the Town in Ordinance 2012-03.  

 Section 4. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

291 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Section 5. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 Section 6. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage and adoption.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2014.       

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  

 FLORIDA 
    
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
MDC 

292 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.b. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No’s. 2014-05 (Guns, Firearms, Gun Ranges) 

(2nd/Final Reading) 

 

 

 

 
 

293 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-05 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN’S 
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ELIMINATE 
REGULATIONS RELATING TO GUNS, FIREARMS AND GUN RANGES 
TO ADDRESS STATE PREEMPTIONS OF THE REGULATION OF 
THESE SUBJECTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO 
COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 790.33, Florida Statutes, preempts to the state the field of 

regulation of firearms and ammunition, except for zoning ordinances “that encompass firearms 

businesses” so long as they are not intended to restrict or prohibit the sale of firearms and 

ammunition as a means of regulating such; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 790.333, Florida Statutes, preempts to the state the field of 

regulation of firearms and ammunition use at sport shooting and training ranges; and,  

WHEREAS, the Florida Attorney General has opined that the preemption in Section 

790.333, Florida Statutes, includes zoning; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 790.33, Florida Statutes, provides substantial penalties for any 

willful intrusion into the state’s preemption on the regulation of firearms and ammunitions, 

including fines of up to $5,000, termination of employment or removal from office, and damages 

of up to $100,000.00; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town’s Unified Land Development Code contains zoning regulations 

relating to shooting and gun ranges, the goal of which was not to restrict gun and ammunition 

sales and use, but to provide use and development standards for such uses; and,  

294 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, believes it is in the best interest 

of the Town to remove all references to guns, firearms, and gun and shooting ranges in the 

Unified Land Development Code in order to avoid the potential of conflict with state law, and to 

defer to the state for regulations of such pursuant to the state’s preemptions as evidenced by 

Sections 790.33 and 790.333, Florida Statutes.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.      

Section 2. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 25 entitled “Commercial 

Zoning Districts,” Section 25-015, entitled “Permitted Uses,” of the Town’s Unified Land 

Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 25-015. - Permitted uses. 
 

Plots located in the Commercial Low and Commercial Low Office zoning districts may be used 
for one or more of the following uses.  

Principal Uses  Commercial Low  
(CL)  

Commercial Low  
Office 
(CLO)  

Adult Entertainment Permitted subject to 
Article 20 

Not Permitted 

Arcade, Video Permitted Not Permitted 

Automobile Repair Garage Permitted Not Permitted 

Bank or Financial Institution Permitted Permitted 

Bar, Lounge, Tavern or Pub Permitted Not Permitted 

Barber Shop, Beauty or Nail Salon Permitted Not Permitted 

Pool Hall Permitted Not Permitted 

295 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Car Wash, Self-Service or Automated Permitted  Not Permitted 

Catering or Food Service Delivery Permitted Not Permitted 

Child Care Center Permitted Not Permitted 

Commercial Animal Manure Mgmt. Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Commercial Chipping and Mulching Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Not Permitted 

Convenience Store Permitted Not Permitted 

Dance/Night Club Permitted Not Permitted 

Day Labor Hiring Center Permitted w/Special 
Exception 

Not Permitted 

Delicatessen Permitted Not Permitted 

Theater or Auditorium Permitted Not Permitted 

Dry Cleaning or Laundry Service Permitted Not Permitted 

Employment Agency Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Essential Services and Utilities Permitted Permitted 

Exhibition of Wildlife Pets Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Not Permitted 

Gasoline Station Permitted Not Permitted 

Shooting Range See Note 1 below See Note 1 below 

Shooting Range, Indoor  Archery Range Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Not Permitted 

Hotel Permitted Not Permitted 

Holiday Wayside Stand Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Laboratory (e.g., medical, dental, research) Permitted Permitted 

Offices (e.g., business, professional, medical) Permitted Permitted 

Package Liquor, Beer or Wine Store Permitted Not Permitted 

Outdoor Events Permitted subject to 
Article 80 and to a 
Special Exception 

Permitted subject to 
Article 80 and to a 
Special Exception 

Retail Plant or Produce Sales Permitted Not Permitted 

Restaurant, Fast Food Permitted Not Permitted 

Restaurant, Full Service Permitted Permitted 

Restaurant, Take Out Only Permitted Permitted 

296 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Retail Services Permitted Not Permitted 

Retail Store Permitted Not Permitted 

Commercial Recreation (e.g., batting cages, 
rink) 

Permitted Not Permitted 

Veterinary Clinic or Hospital Permitted Not Permitted 

Warehouse, Self Storage Permitted Not Permitted 

Wireless Communication Facilities Permitted Permitted 

Adult Day Care Permitted Permitted 

Schools, Public or Private Permitted Not Permitted 

Gym or Fitness Center Permitted Permitted 
 
Note 1:  The regulation of  guns and shooting ranges is preempted by state law and 
regulated solely by the State of Florida.  See Sections 790.33 and 790.333, Florida Statutes 

 

Section 3. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 35 entitled “Parks and 

Recreation Zoning Districts,” Section 35-015, entitled “Permitted Uses,” of the Town’s Unified 

Land Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 35-015. - Permitted uses. 
 

Plots located in the Parks and Recreation zoning district may be used for one or more of the 
following specified uses.  

Principal Uses  Parks and Recreation  
Gun or Archery Range Permitted subject to Article 80 

Shooting Range See Note 1 below 

Boat Ramp, Fishing Pier and Dock Permitted 

Botanical Garden Permitted 

Walking and Biking Trail Permitted 

Essential Services Permitted 

Nature Trail Permitted 

Outdoor Events Permitted subject to Article 80 

Lake or Pond Permitted 

Public Park Permitted 

297 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Note 1:  The regulation of  guns and shooting ranges is preempted by state law and 
regulated solely by the State of Florida.  See Sections 790.33 and 790.333, Florida Statutes 
 

Section 4. Part III, entitled Supplemental Regulations,” Article 80, entitled 

“Conditional Use,” Section 80-040, entitled “Archery and gun ranges,” of the Town’s Unified 

Land Development Code, is amended as follows:  

Section 80-040. - Archery and gun ranges. 
 

Target areas for archery and gun ranges shall provide sufficient separation and 
barriers sufficient to preclude any intrusion of such activities (including noise above 
nuisance levels) upon adjacent properties. All gun ranges shall be within a building 
located on a parcel that has a land use designation of Commercial Low Retail and shall 
also conform to the Best Management Practices for Environmental Stewardship of 
Florida Shooting Ranges as outlined by the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection.  

 Section 5. Part IV, entitled “Parking and Loading, Access and Subdivision, Sight 

Distance,” Division I, entitled “Space Requirements, Size and Use, Section 95-010, entitled 

“Minimum parking space requirements,” of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, is 

amended as follows: 

Section 95-010. - Minimum parking space requirements. 

The minimum parking requirements for each use is outlined below, however, for uses not 
specifically listed, the parking requirements for the most similar use shall be used as determined 
by the Town Manager. When the number of required parking spaces results in a fractional space, 
any such fraction shall require a full parking space. In the case of mixed uses (not including 
shopping centers), the total requirement for parking spaces shall be the sum of the various uses 
computed separately. In stadiums, sports arenas, religious facilities, bars and other places of 
assembly in which occupants utilize benches, pews, stools or other similar seating facilities, 
every 20 lineal inches of such seating shall be counted as one seat for the purpose of computing 
parking requirements. Every building, use or structure which complies with the parking 
requirements of this article may provide additional parking spaces as needed.  

 

 

 

 

298 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 (E)   Recreational uses:  

Uses  Minimum Parking Requirements  
Gun or Archery Range One parking space per target 

position 

Other Recreational 
Uses 

Determined by agency facilitating 
and maintaining the use 

 
Section 6:  It is the intent of the Town Council that the Town’s ordinances and 

Unified Land Development Code be interpreted and administered consistent with the state’s 

preemptions of the regulation of fields of guns and ammunition, and gun ranges. 

Section 7. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, and all Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 7:  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 

applications of this Ordinance that can be given affect without the invalid provision or 

application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 8:  This Ordinance shall become effective as provided by law.   

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ________ DAY OF 
__________, 2014 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
____ DAY OF _____________, 2014        
 
            
       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
       FLORIDA 
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    

299 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney                          ________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 
 
 

300 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.  

ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 

 (No Backup) 
 

301 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9. 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

302 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Captive Wildlife 

303 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



304 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



305 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



306 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



307 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



308 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



309 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



310 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



311 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



312 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



313 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



314 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



315 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



316 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



317 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



318 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



319 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



320 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



321 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



322 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



323 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



324 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



325 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



326 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



327 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



328 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



329 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



330 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



331 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



332 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



333 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



334 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



335 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



336 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



337 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



338 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



339 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



340 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



341 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



342 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



343 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



344 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.b. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Code Enforcement PowerPoint 

345 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mark A. Kutney, AICP, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

*

346 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*Is governed by Florida Statute FS Chapter 162 
County or Municipal Code Enforcement 

 

*Statute’s principal intent was to achieve 
compliance with applicable codes 

 

*Was not conceived to be a vehicle for local 
government to enhance revenue 

347 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

There are three alternate methods to process 
code enforcement actions in local government: 

 

1. Code Enforcement Boards 

2. Special Magistrates 

3. Both  

348 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

The Membership for a Code Enforcement Board 
Shall whenever possible include: 
*An architect 
*Business person 
*Engineer 
*General Contractor 
*Sub Contractor 
*Realtor 

 

349 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

1. Complaints 

      a) by a complainant 

      b) anonymous complaints 

2. Patrol and monitoring 

3. Planned, Programmed, and Strategic Code 
Enforcement Action   

350 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

 
Developed in 1982 by James Q. Wilson and 
George L. Kelling 
 
Theory suggests that disorder and crime are 
inextricably linked with the physical environment 
at the community level  
 
Source: Code Enforcement by Schilling and Hare 

351 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

The Code Enforcement Function is usually 
conducted in one of the following departments: 

*As a free standing department 

*As part of a building department 

*As part of a planning or planning/development 
department 

*As part of a police department 

*As part of a fire service department 

352 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*The Fourth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution 
protects persons, houses, papers, and effects 
against the unreasonable searches by government 
agents without a warrant 

*The same limitations that apply to police officers 
when they enter private property to search for 
evidence, apply to most code enforcement 
situations 

*Also applies to administrative inspections  
 

 source: Code Enforcement: by Schilling and Hare 

353 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*It should be noted the Fourth Amendment 
applies to searches where the occupant has a 
reasonable expectation of privacy (source: Code 
Enforcement by Schilling and Hare) 

 

354 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*Administrative inspections by enforcement 
inspectors may be accomplished without a 
warrant when: 
*The occupant consents to the inspection 

*No reasonable expectation of privacy exists in 
the place or situation 

*The inspection of a vacant building does not 
require an inspection warrant 

Source: Code Enforcement by Schilling and Hare 

355 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*Inspection of yards surrounding single family 
homes 
*When steps are taken to keep people out (e.g. 

construction of a fence) the code enforcement 
officer must be careful to not violate protections 

*When plain view observations are evident, no 
warrant is needed  

 
source: Code Enforcement by Schilling and Hare 

356 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

Highly Regulated Businesses 

 

*Warrantless inspections are permitted where 
the search furthers an administrative policy or 
purpose designated by statute or ordinance 
(source: Code Enforcement by Schilling and Hare) 

*When work is being completed by building 
permit (called in-progress inspections) 

 

357 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

The following are examples of difficult cases to 
gather evidence and prosecute: 

 

*Noise complaints 

*Overcrowding/violation of family definition 

*Religious uses (RLUIPA) 

358 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

Informal: 

*Notice of violation (NOV) 

*Stop work orders 

*Mediation 

 

Formal: 

*Due Process-Notices and Hearings 

359 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*The code enforcement board/magistrate may 
order the violator to pay a fine in the amount 
specified for each day the violation continues 
past the date set for compliance 

 

360 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

* A fine shall not exceed $250 per day 
-$500 for repeat offenders 

-If a violation is found to be irreparable or 
irreversible in nature, the fine may be $5000 per 
violation 

 

361 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

The determination of the amount of fine shall be 
based on the following factors: 

 

*The gravity of the situation 

*Actions taken by the violator to correct the 
violation 

*Previous violations committed by the violator 

362 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*A certified copy of an order imposing a fine 
may be recorded in the public records and 
thereafter shall constitute a lien against the 
land on which the violation exists and upon any 
other real or personal property owned by the 
violator. 

363 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*A fine imposed…shall continue to accrue until 
the violator comes into compliance or 
judgment is rendered in a suit… 

 

*A lien arising from a fine imposed…runs in favor 
of the local governing body and the local 
governing body may execute a satisfaction or 
release of lien… 

364 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*After 3 months from the filing of any such lien 
which remains unpaid, the enforcement board 
may authorize the local government attorney 
to foreclose on the lien or sue to recover a 
money judgment for the amount of lien plus 
accrued interest 

365 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*No lien may be foreclosed on real property 
which is a homestead 

 

*No lien shall continue for a period longer than 
20 years after the certified copy of an order 
has been recorded 

366 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*An aggrieved party including the local 
governing body may appeal a final 
administrative order to the circuit court 
-The appeal must be filed within 30 days of the 
execution of the order 

367 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

*Citation Process 

 

*Notice to Appear 

368 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



*

369 of 369      06/03/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA 
	2.a. Consent Agenda Attorney Invoice
	2.b. Consent Agenda Minutes 05/06/2014
	2.c. Consent Agenda Water Connection
	4.b. Presentations Phyllis Maniglia
	4.c.Presentations Jim Fleischmann ULDC has been included as an separate attachment to the Agenda Packet.  
	5.a. Committee Reports - Financials
	6. Resolution No. 2014-05
	7.a. Ordinance No. 2014-04
	7.b. Ordinance No. 2014-05
	8. Administrative Update - no backup
	9. Old Business - None
	10.a. New Business-Captive Wildlife
	10.b. New Business-Code Enforcement PowerPoint



